December 18, 2006

MEMORANDUM TO: James A. Gavula, Senior Reactor Inspector
Division of Reactor Safety
Region Il

FROM: Cynthia A. Carpenter, Director /RA/
Office of Enforcement

SUBJECT: DIFFERING PROFESSIONAL OPINION DECISION REGARDING
DAVIS BESSE’'S REPLY TO THE U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION’S APRIL 21, 2005, NOTICE OF VIOLATION
(DPO-2006-004)

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the management decision for the Differing
Professional Opinion (DPO) regarding FirstEnergy Nuclear Operating Company’s (FENOC or
licensee) September 14, 2005, response to the Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of
Civil Penalties that was issued to the Davis Besse Nuclear Plant on April 21, 2005. In
accordance with Management Directive 10.159, The Differing Professional Opinions Program,
my predecessor appointed an Ad Hoc Review Panel on July 7, 2006 to conduct an independent
review of your concerns.

In short, the DPO concerned FENOC'’s response to one of five escalated, apparent violations
cited in the Agency’s April 21, 2005, Notice of Violation (NOV), Violation 1.E and the manner in
which the staff addressed issues you raised concerning the completeness and accuracy of this
response and associated violations you identified. The issues of concern are the U. S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission’s (NRC’s) determination that: (a) FENOC did not violate Title 10 of the
Code of Federal Regulations Part 50.9, “Completeness and Accuracy of Information,” in its
September 14, 2005, letter in response to an NRC NOV, and (b) FENOC’s procedure for “NRC
Communications” did not pertain to a safety related structure, system or component, therefore,
inaccuracies in its September 14, 2005, letter, associated with the denial of violation 1.E, did
not constitute a violation of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, “Quality Assurance Criteria for Nuclear
Power Plants and Fuel Reprocessing Plants.”

The DPO Panel met with you on July 17, 2006, to establish a concise statement of your
concerns. You concurred on a revised statement of concerns on August 2, 2006. The Panel
and you agreed upon the following statements of concerns.

1. The statement denying violation 1.E in FENOC’s September 14, 2005, letter in
response to NRC NOV (EA-05-072) was inaccurate and violated 10 CFR 50.9,
“Completeness and Accuracy of Information.” Specifically, the statement that
“‘FENOCs reasons for denying the violation are more fully explained in its several
reports and reviews previously provided to the NRC,” is inaccurate since these
reports addressed willfulness which was not an issue in violation 1.E.
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2. Furthermore, the NRC failed to take any regulatory actions because it was
incorrectly concluded: (a) that there was no violation of 10 CFR 50.9 because
FENOC's inaccurate statement was not material to the NRC; (b) that there was
no violation of any 10 CFR 50, Appendix B criteria since FENOC'’s procedure,
“NRC Communication,” for verifying the completeness and accuracy of
information submitted to the NRC did not pertain to a safety related structure,
system, or component and therefore 10 CFR 50 Appendix B did not apply; and
(c) that there was no concern identified, during the NRC'’s recent inspection
associated with FENOC’s September 14, 2005, response to violation 1.E, even
though FENOC did not comply with their “NRC Communication” procedure, and
Davis-Besse’s restart in March 2004 was authorized by the NRC based, in part,
on FENOC'’s compliance with this procedure.

The panel provided the results of their review on October 18, 2006, and reached the following
overall conclusions:

1. On the basis of the staff’s prior understanding of the factual backdrop which attended
FENOC’s submittal of its response, the DPO Panel concluded that FENOC's reply to violation
1.E of the Notice of Violation did not constitute an additional violation of 10 CFR 50.9;

2. The Agency’s final determination concerning this issue was appropriate; and

3. Given the Panel’'s conclusions concerning the reply to violation 1.E, your other contentions
and your request for other actions are moot.

In reaching my decision, | reviewed the panel’s report, discussed the panel’s conclusions with
the panel chair and the other two panel members, and reviewed your comments on the draft
report. Based on this review, | agree with the conclusions of the panel. The panel provided two
recommendations. My decision regarding the recommendations, and the rationale for the
decisions, are provided below.

Recommendation 1: In response to comments in the submitter’'s DPO concerning the staff’s
failure to make initial correspondence received from FENOC counsel on this issue publicly
available, the Panel recommends that this document be made publicly available so that any
appearance of impropriety may be avoided.

Decision: Agree with the recommendation. A check in ADAMS confirmed that this
document was not publically available.

Rationale: To avoid any appearance of impropriety, the document should have been
made publically available as you indicated. After checking with the Office of General
Counsel (OGC), the document was declared public in ADAMS on December 14, 2006.

Recommendation 2: Whether possible improvements could be made to the enforcement
process regarding the handling of potentially incomplete and inaccurate statements. The DPO
Panel noted that Section IX of the Enforcement Policy and the respective supplements already
provide adequate guidance on this topic. In this case, both the Office of Enforcement (OE) and
OGC reviewed the facts associated with this and reached a determination. Since the process
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adequately functioned as intended, the DPO Panel has identified no recommendations for
process revision.

Decision: Agree with the recommendation. In this case, both OE and OGC reviewed
the facts associated with this and reached a determination. Since the process

adequately functioned as intended, the DPO Panel identified no recommendations for
process revision. In addition, no additional concerns have been identified in this area.

Rationale: | agree with the panel that the Enforcement Policy and the Enforcement
Manual contain adequate guidance and the process functioned as needed and
appropriately.

| appreciate your comments and commend your willingness to use the Differing Professional
Opinion process. Your DPO was very well thought out, was well supported, and | appreciate
your taking the time to discuss your concerns with the DPO panel. In accordance with
Management Directive 10.159, The Differing Professional Opinions Program, a summary of the
issue and its disposition will be included in the Weekly Information Report to advise interested

employees of the outcome.

CC: R. Pedersen, DPOPM
DPO Panel Members
M. Virgilio
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